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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-1271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 25. 2019 ■

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into a sole source agreement with Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire, Inc. (Vendor #TBD), 55
Main Street Antrim, NH 03440 to provide Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) room and board services in an
amount not to exceed $700,000 effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through
September 30, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVISION, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Social

Services
92057040 $550,000

2021 102500731
Contracts for Social

Services
92057040 $150,000

Total $700,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the State has a strong need to expand access to
residential beds for Medicaid beneficiaries with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD). Sobriety Centers of New
Hampshire Inc. is an established inpatient rehab center for adult women that operates in Antrim, NH.
The vendor's location uniquely qualifies it to handle this underserved population in NH.

The purpose of this request is to ensure services are available to individuals with OUD who
need residential treatment services that are paid for by Medicaid.

Approximately 258 individuals will be served from August 2019 through September 2020.

This agreement will expand access to residential treatment services provided to Medicaid-
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covered individuals with OUD. Funds in this agreement will be used to cover $100 of room and board
payments for Medicaid beneficiaries with OUD in low and high intensity residential treatment services.
The funds will support existing residential programs to continue serving the Medicaid population, which
has been cited as a challenge by treatment providers as a result of differing rates of reimbursement
between Medicaid and Commercial payers. The vendor will use these funds to ensure individuals with
OUD, receiving residential treatment, have continued or expanded access to the necessary level of
care, which increases their abilities to achieve and maintain recovery. The vendor will continue to offer
an existing array of treatment services including individual and group outpatient, intensive outpatient,
and partial hospitalization, transitional living, and high and low intensity residential services.

This agreement is part of the State's recently approved plan under the State Opioid Response (SOR)
grant, which identified access to residential treatment as a funding priority. The Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) approved NH's proposal in September 2019, with
the expectation that funds would be spent as soon as possible. The Department will monitor the
effectiveness of the vendor, the delivery of services required under this agreement, and the vendor's
financial health by:

•  Receiving and Reviewing Quarterly reports.

•  Conducting site visits.

•  Reviewing client records.

.  • Acquiring and analyzing monthly financial data.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parlies have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, residential treatment
programs may have to limit the availability of beds for individuals with OUD on Medicaid, which would
delay access to care for those individuals.

Area sen/ed: Hillsborough County.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration State Opioid Response
Grant, CFDA 93.788/FAIN #TI081685

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Resj^ectfully submitted.

jOTrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Subject: Ooioid Use Disorder Room & Board Services (SS-2020-BDAS»04-OP101D)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Sobriety Centers of New Hampshire, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

55 Main Street

Antrim, NH 03440

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 808-0185

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920510-70400000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

September 30, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$700,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

l.ll Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

r^cto'
i.l3 Acknowl^ement: State of "J^i^t^A/^'.y'^^tvCounly of

On ^ ^ / ? , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block l.ll, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

rseall / y 11
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 5 S

'2^ct,incic. 2)6uJ«v/a/
1.14 State Agency Signature . 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency

Fax
1.16 Approval by theN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Pe?sbnnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) ■ " ' -

on: 7/^^^
1.18 Appro(^al by the G6vern(5r and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:
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CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TOBE PERFORMED. The State of New Hatnpahite. acUng
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State") eneaLs
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform
Md the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
Simr 1 particularly described in the attachedA which IS incorporated herein by reference
( Services").

3 * I date/completion of services.3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contraiy, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligaUons of the parties
here^der, shaU become effective on the date the Governor

WockT?r.mr?""''* T'""® Agreement as indicated inblock 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
Agreement shall become effective on the date the

-^ecncy as shown in block
i  l4( ElTective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the

toThfFff 'rl' >>y "he Contractor prior
rnntra r n ! "" »' the solc risk of theContractor and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effecttve, the State shall have no liability to the

r„„?rr performed
«rb;::kir

N  nature of agreement.Not^thstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
F  hereunder, including,^thout limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder are

ofS^a T" i'y continued appropriationof funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any

E'? i" of s"ch available appropriatedfunds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropnatcd Imids, the State shall have the right to withhold
parent unu such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the n^t to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
ffving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
sh^l not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account Identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

price/price limitation/

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
'dentified and more particularly described in

c  mcorporated herein by reference
.nl State of the contract price shall be theonly and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shaU be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
priC6>

5 3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
osc liquidated founts required or permitted by N.H. RSA

80.7 throu^ RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations

which county or municipal authoritieswh ch impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor
indudmg, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportlinity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabihues, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information fix>m. and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws
6^2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discnminate against employees or appUcants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex
h^dicap, sexual oncntation, or national origin and will take
af^^tivc action to prevent such discrimination.

United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Emplo^ent Opportunity"), as supplemented by the

States Department of Labor (41

S iT"' T '■^S^^tions and guidelinesas the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
^certaining compliance with all rules, regulations and ordersand the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.
7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necKsary to perform the Services. The Contractor

that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualifi^ to perform the Services, and shall be properly
li«wed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
7^2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Apement. and for a penod of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the ContrBctor shall not hireand shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, fimi or
coiporation wth whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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7 3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or

■he Contracng Officer's decision shall be final for thfs"! '

8. EVENT OF default/remedies

s'cL'dller ^-'-factorily or on
3 failj^e S oerfr' aad/orof dfis A^rel^n. °™ "=™ "

not h™ly rentedied, terminate ^his A^lte^ S^^e(2) days after gtvmg the Contractor notice of termination

Agreement as breached and pursue any of itsremedies at law or in equity, or both. ^

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean aii
format,on and things developed or obtained during Zperformance of, or acquired or developed by reason of this
Agreement including, but not limited to, all studies reportsto formulae, siu^eys. maps, charts, sound recoSn^eo

Z ̂ rZZ ""■'r" "'"ived fromZdfrZl a"" ""h fltnds provided for that purposeunder this Agreement, shall be the Dronertv of ih^ jShall be returned to the State upon dTmTn^ofupon ' '"
te^nauon of this Agreement for any reason.
V  of data shall be governed by N H RSA^mer 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure'of data
requu^ pnor wntten approval of the State.

Page 3 of 4

10. termination. In the event of an early termination of
Se^trtZZ r' T T?° ■^"■npletion of thehelices, the Contractor shall deliver to the ContractingOfficer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of

descnbcd m the attached EXHIBIT A.

SZ ZZ''"''' " """""" aathority to

consrtZtsrrrrstSsizr
:rerrortYft"rh:;r"'*'-"^'-—■-
mdemnify and ho'ldt^KMhe sZeYZofficeratrd"'^

"nSshardre-;-::^^^^^^^
survive the termination of this AgreemenT^
14. INSURANCE,

maL™° ^'■all, at its sole expense, obtain and
Zl« to oZ'' °"h aa'^onhactor or
ins« """""-nS
cltiml ""''"'■'y insurance against all
o nZlessS"0M■qoZ''ag^cgme ;Zd occurrence and 52,000,000lA 1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9 2 herein in an
ess than sno/ ..,f .1, T , ^ nerein, m an amount not
4 2 tYa Z "Y'' ̂ '^Planement value of the property14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14 I herein sh^"

sL™o'f nZ'S"" Y" 'l'"" aZvld foYtZ iniheState of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
~ -the state of New

Contractor Initials
DateJZ^g^^



Contracting Officerdentificd m block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ccrtificatefs)
of insurMce for all msuraoce required under this Agreement
Con^ctor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified m block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiflcatefs) of

A^mcm^'^ ̂1' insurance required under this
date oTeach^^^^^^^^^date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of

^ requiring the insurer toprovide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1 9 or his

noUce of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15 J By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees

or e«r, fr ""T" withor exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
( Workers Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the

r^uirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shallmmntam. and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in

nnnll^ r" acl'^ilies which the person proposes to
W h fi! Agreement. Contractor shall^.sh the Contractmg Officer identified in block 1.9 or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in ihe
manner descnbed in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc

f  reference. The State shall not beresponsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation

My subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16_ WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
Mforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall

DefaT7 ° Event ofDefault, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the nght of the State to enforce each and all of the

onT'""^ other Event of Defaulton the part of the Contractor.

^y ® hereto to the other partyshall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the

StTtes ProTfi ̂  postage prepaid, in a UnitedStates Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given m blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
btate law, rule or policy.

^. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS
I  "'T®"' construed in accordance with thelaws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
mures to the benefit of the parties and their r^pcJT
successors and «signs. The wording used in this Agreement

intenL^ ® 1°'f" "I""' """'"Ol
Llvor of -

cnn!^. Agreement shall not beconstrued to confer any such benefit.

Me f^rffe throughout the Agreement
thMein shall m no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
id in die interpretation, construction or meaning of the

provisions of this Agreement.

22 SPECUL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set

Se'ncf ^ incontorated herein by
23 SEVERABIUTV. In the event any of the provisions of
s A^cemcnt arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction tobe 0000001 to state or federal law, the remailg

cffccr^'^ Agreement will remain in fiill force and

be deem^al '"""teTarts, each of which shallbe deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
M^rstanding between the parties, and supers^^^rpno"
greements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

described herein, the State Agency hafthT rtoW to mnH^e'T"'
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to a^hfe™ r r®

1 0 cr^r «?'"ciii bo as TO achteve compliance therewith

, SebrecipienTllfrccordanceXhVpmvS^^ a
1.3. Standard Compliance

r' ■" ..1.3.2. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

zs's^reT*resources. Payments for services funded with SOR

Jo^r^aTsr^'br com't^ed^""^^ ®"®"'invoices for services provided through sSSed ™ti
(MAT) with FDA-apprawd^MATfor^^^^ Treatment
approved MAT for OUD includes
1.3.2.3.1. Methadone.
1.3.2.3.2. Buprenorphine products, including:

1.3.2.3.2.1. Single^entity buprenorphine products.
Buprenorphine/naloxone tablets,
Buprenorphine/naloxone films.
Buprenorphine/naloxone buccal
preparations.1.3.2.3.3. Long-acting injectabie buprenorphine products.

1.3.2.3.4. Buprenorphine Implants.
1.3.2.3.5. Injectabie extended-release naltrexone

withdrawal management servirl ic o founds, unless theinjoctahie exIendelrrsirrneTcr^^^?^^^^^^^^^^^^
The Contractor shall ensure that clients receiving financial aid for

Contractor Initials

1.3.2.2.

1.3.2.3.

1.3.2.3.2.2.

1-3.2.3.2.3.

1.3.2.3.2.4.

1.3.2.4.

1.3.2.5.

Exhibit A
Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire. Inc.
SS-2020-BOAS-04.OPIOID

Page 1 of 12
Date
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Exhibit A

1.3.2.6.

1.3.2.7.

1.3.2.8.

1.3.3.1.

1.3.3.2.

The Contractor shall coordinate with the NH Ryan White HIVMinc
program, for clients Identified as at risk of or with HIV/AIDS.

clients are regularly screened for

treatment pteS"'"'

specifies actions to be taken in ttie event tH^he CoTrac?Irservices. The Contractor shai, ensure the PiantLTb:?:rof^^!«^

a,tlmaXro''v'i°dem''"th'no gap in'eS

1.3.3.3. Client notification processes and procedures for 1.3.3.1 and 1.3.3.2.
2. Scope of Services

2.1. Covered Populations

2.2. Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Systems of Care

c'omrScTornSntC^^^^^ Department's Doorway
2.2.1.1. Ensuring timely admission of clients to services

SJTy; 'o the
dfenN "n " "h T"" services with the
se^ed halT,^ and board client
,nr®i Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA)interview completed at intake, six (6) months, and discharge.
Referring clients to Doorway services when the Contractor cannot
admit a client for services within forty-eight (48) hours; and

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire, Inc. Exhibit a
^  Contractor InltiaJs

SS-2020-BOAS-O4-OPJOID r, —7Datel/LLj/a

.2.2.1.2.

2.2.1.3.

2.2.1.4.
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2.2.1.5. Referring clients to Doorway services at the time of discharge when
a client is in need of Hub services

2.2.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered in a manner that is sensitive
and relevant to the diversity of the clients being served.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services are trauma informed, meaning that they
are designed to acknowledge:

2.2.3.1. The impact of violence and trauma on people's lives; and
2.2.3.2. The importance of addressing trauma in treatment.

2.3. Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide SUD Treatment Services in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-W 513.

2.4. Enrolling Clients for Services

2.4.1. The Contractor shall use the clinical evaluations completed by a Licensed or
miicensed Counselor from a referring agency including, but not limited to
Doorways.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall obtain consent for treatment from the client, in accordance
vvilh 42 CFR Part 2. pnor to providing services to individuals ages 12 years and
older.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall obtain consent for treatment, in accordance with 42 CFR
Part 2, from the parent or legal guardian of a client who is under the age of tweive
(12) years prior to providing services.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall ensure the consent to share information with other social
service agencies involved in the client's care is included in the consent fonn
language and, Includes, but is not limited to:

2.4.4.1. The Department of Health & Human Services. Division of Children
Youth and Families (DCYF).

2.4.4.2. Probation and parole.

2.4.4.3. Doorways.

T  services under thiscontract when a client does not consent to Information sharing in Section 2.4 4
above, except that clients who refuse to consent to information sharing with the
Doorways shall not receive services utilizing State Opioid Response (SOR)

2.4.6. Contractor shall nobty clients who consent to information sharing in Section
2 A4, above of the ability to rescind the consent, in writing The Contractor shall
ensure clients:

2.4.6.1. Receive information regarding their right to rescind consent to sharing
information with the Doorway, in writing. ^

sobriety centers for New Hampshire, Inc. e^pim a Oontmcor imtlais

SS.2020-BDAS-04-OPIOID Page 3 0112 D3„7



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

2.4.6.2. Receive instructions on how to rescind consent.

2.4.6.3. Are provided with Information regarding the impact of rescinding
consent on current services provided.

2.4.6.4. Are provided with information regarding the availability of SORs funding
on any additional services should consent be rescinded.

2.4.7. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible clients who:
2.4.7.1. Receive Medication Assisted Treatment services from other providers,

including but not limited to a primary care provider;
2.4.7.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or
2.4.7.3. Are taking medications, as prescribed, regardless of the class of

medication.

2.4.8. The Contractor shall provide substance use disorder treatment services
separately for adolescent and adults, unless otherwise approved by the
Department. The Contractor shall ensure adolescents and adults:
2.4.8.1. Do not share the same residency space.
2.4.8.2. May share communal space at separate times including, but not limited

to:

2.4.8.2.1. Kitchens.

2.4.8.2.2. Group rooms.

2.4.8.2.3. Recreation areas.

2.5. Waitlists

2.5.1. The Contractor shall maintain a waitlist for all clients and all substance use
disorder treatment services including the eligible clients being served under this
contract and clients being served under another payer source.

2.5.2. The Contractor shall monitor the wait time for the clients on waitlists to receive
services, from the date of initial client contact to the date a client first receives
substance use disorder treatment services.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall provide a monthly report to the Department that indicates
the average wart time for all clients, by the type of service and payer source for
ail the services.

2.6. Service Delivery Activities and Requirements

2.6.1. The Contractor shall assess all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of
treatment, including but not limited to:

2.6.1.1. Initial contact.

2.6.1.2. During screening.

2.6.1.3. At intake.

2.6.1.4. During admission.

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials^'C^
SS-2020-BDAS-04-OPIOID p^ge 4 of 12 Date 1 jj^ lIC^



Of Health and Human ServicesOpioid Use Disorder Room & Board Services

Exhibit A

2.6.1.5. During on-going treatment services.

2.6.1.6. At discharge.

2.6.3.

for withdrawal risk based on ASAM (2013)standards at all phases of treatment. Including, but not limited to:
2.6.2.1. Initial contact.

2.6.2.2. During screening.

2.6.2.3. At intake.

2.6.2.4. During admission.

2^6.2.5. During on-going treatment services.
The Contractor shall stabilize all clients based on ASAM (2013) guidance by:
2.6.3.1. Providing stabilization services when a client's level of risk indicates a

ConharT ? "e provided undeMhis
of K ® a service with an ASAM Level

2.6.3.2. Referring clients to a facility where the services can be provided when
hinhor th a service with an ASAM Level of Care that ishigher than can be provided under this Contract. The Contractor shall
coortinate with the withdrawal management services provider to adml
he client to an appropriate service once the client's withXawa risfhas
reached a level that can be provided under this contract

;rolide~ctba^^^^^^ ^ with other
2.6.4.1. ^nssnts in as appropriate from the client, including

I. conseht, if applicable, in compliance with state anri
ss nsrr "«• ■«

2.6.4.1.1. Primary care provider and if the client does not have a
pnmary rare provider, the Contractor shall make an
appropnate referral to one and coordinate care with the
42° CFR 'pfPT'"*® from the client. In"alfn. applicable, are obtained in
anrfedlal mIeT

2.6.4.

2.6.4.1.2.

Sobriety Centere for New Hampshire, Inc.

SS-2020-BDAS-04-OPIOIO

Behavioral health rare provider when serving clients with
anri"if T"® "S® and mental health disorders,and If the client does not have a mental health care
provider then the Contractor shall make an appropriate
referral to one and coordinate care with that provider if
appropnate consents from the client, including 42 CFfy^art

I
Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Hearth and Human Services
Opioid Use Disorder Room & Board Services

ExhIbrtA

2 consent. If applicable, are obtained In advance in
compliance with state, federal laws and state and federal
rules.

2.6.4.1.3. Medication assisted treatment provider.

2.6.4.1.4. Peer recovery support provider, and if the client does not
have a peer recovery support provider, the Contractor shall
make an appropriate referral to one and coordinate care
with that provider if appropriate consents from the client,
including 42 CFR Part 2 consent, If applicable, are obtained
In advance In compliance with state, federal laws and state
and federal rules.

2.6.4.1.5. Coordinate with local recovery community organizations,
^ere available, to bring peer recovery support providers
into the treatment setting, to meet with clients to describe
available services and to engage clients In peer recovery
support services as applicable.

2.6.4.1.6. Coordinate with case management services offered by the
client's managed care organization, Doorway, third party
insurance or other provider. If applicable. If appropriate
consents from the client, including 42 CFR Part 2 consent,
if applicable, are obtained in advance In compliance with
state, federal laws and state and federal rules.

2.6.4.2. Coordinate with other social service agencies engaged with the client
including but not limited to the Department's Division for Children
Youm and Families (DCYF), probation/parole, and the Doorways as
applicable and allowable with consent provid^ pursuant to 42 CFR
Part 2. The Contractor shall clearfy document in the dienfs file If the
client refuses any of the referrals or care coordination in Section 2 8 4
above. " '

2.7. Client Education

2.7.1. The Contractor shall offer all eligible clients receiving services under this
contract, individual or group education on prevention, treatment, and nature of;
2.7.1.1. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV).

2.7.1.2. Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).

2.7.1.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD).

2.7.1.4. Tobacco Treatment Tools that Include:

2.7.1.4.1. Assessing clients for motivation in stopping the use of
tobacco products;

2.7.1.4.2. Offering resources such as but not limited to the
Department's Tobacco Prevention & Control Program
(TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation counselors
available through the QuitLine.

2.8. Tobacco Free Environment ^
Sobriety CentBra for New Hampshire, Inc. exWW a CorrtfBctor initiate
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2.8.1.

2.8.1.1. Include the smoking of any tobacco product, the use of oral tobacco
products or spit tobacco, and the use of electronic devices;

2.8.1.2. Apply to employees, clients and employee or client visitors;

any^time""® '°bacco products within the Contractor's facilities at
2.8.1.4. Prohibit the use of tobacco in any Contractor owned vehicie

2.8.1.6.2. All materials used for smoking in this area includlna
cigarette butts and matches, shall be extinguished and
disposed of in appropriate containers.

2.8..1.6.3. Ensure periodic cleanup of the designated smoking area.
2.8.1.6.4. designated smoking area is not properiy maintained, it

can be eliminated at the discretion of the Contractor.
2.8.1.7. Prohibit tobacco use In any company vehicle.

'  r^hMuTness " P-P'® -

3. Facilities License

■'=S5~=SSSS=r-=a
-ices are provided

4. Reporting
4.1. The Contractor shall report on the following:

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire. Inc. Exhibif a
^  Contractor Initials
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4.1.2

4.1.3

°®P^rtment of Health and Human Services
Opfold Use Disorder Room & Board Services

Exhibit A

All crItiMi incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possibie and no
more than 24 hours following the Incident. The Contractor agrees that;

®"®9ed event or situation thatcreates a significant nsk of substantial or serious harm to physical or
mental health, safety, or well- being, including but not limited to:
4.1.1.1.1. Abuse;

4.1.1.1.2. Neglect;

4.1.1.1.3. Exploitation;

4.1.1.1.4. Rights violation;

4.1.1.1.5. Missing person;
4.1.1.1.6. Medical emergency;

4:1.1.1.7. Restraint; or

4.1.1.1.8. Medical error.

fha^fho" !^:XTn«
4.1.4. Sentinei events to the Department as foliows:

any individual whoIS receiving services under this contract;

4.1.4,2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shail provide immediate
verbal notification of the event to the bureau, which shali Include:

The reporting individual's name, phone number and
agency/organization;

inwl!?® H individual(s)involved in the event;
4.1.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;
4.1.4.2.4. Description of the event, inciuding what, when, where

how the event happened, and other relevant information'
as well as the identification of any other individuals
involved;

4.1.4.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

4.1.4.2.6. The identification of any media that had reported the
event;

Contractor shali submit acompleted Sentinel Event Reporting Form" (February 2017)

foCdf^o tt bull'au!"^ '''' "'-'"^^^
Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire, Inc. Ccntmcor Initials
SS-2020-BOAS.04.OPIO,O o..s 7/2^/ f
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4.1.4.4. Additional Information on the event that is discovered after filing the
form tn Section 4.1.5.3. above shall be reported to the Deoartment in
wnting. as it becomes available or upon request of the Department;

4.1.4.5., Submit additional Information regarding Sections 4.1.5.1 through
4.1.5.4 above if required by the department; and

,  4.1.4.6. Report the event In Sections 4.1.5.1 through 4.1.54 above as
applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

with OUD. the Contractor
.served has a GPRA Nerview completed a. irrtake, slx^^rrl^ardi'sct^p"'

■  ■ ^ OUD for
including, but not limited to accepting referrals and'^clinteal"p"'f Doorways
care placement directly from the Doorways evaluation results for level of

5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

ll^Zt'sfhall^rbml^^^^^ ZalSContractor shall be evrated the {ollowing.'
5.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

s„r""

kinZZZ!i ''epreciation/amorfizatlon and in- ■Kind plus pnncipal payments on debt divided by days in the rennrtinn

tZ investments as used aboZsZmatuZlinthree (3) months and should not include common stock.
5.1.1.3. Perfomance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash and

cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirtv
calendar days with no variance all6wed. (30)

5.1.2. Current Ratio:

5.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets
available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

5.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities

rumtTrarof^fslZh In'./ ^curreni ratio of 1.5.1 with 10% variance allowed.
5.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

5.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the
cost of Its current portion of its long-term debt. r - f ®

Sobriety Centere for New Hampshire. Inc. Exhibit a 0/i
Contractor Initials l/v ^

SS-2020-BDAS-O4-OPIOID
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5.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.

5.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense plus
Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service (principal and
Interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

5.1.3.4. Source^ of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial .Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal and
interest).

5.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to
cover its liabilities.

5.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.

5.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by total
assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.

5.1.4.5. Performahce Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum
ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

5.2. In order to enable the Department to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss
statement for the month and year-to-date for the agency and the Profit and Loss
statement for the month and year-to-date for the program being funded with this contract.

5.3. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

5.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard regarding
Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

5.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards
for three (3) consecutive months, then

5.3.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department
staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the standards.

5.3.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 5.3.1
and/or 5.3.1 have not been met.

5.3.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least every
thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

5.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department. The
Contractor shall provide requested Information in a timeframe agreed
upon by both parties.

5.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may reasonably be considered tojijave

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Contrador SrrJn'S thTs AgrtL"'nT^i'h'thfoepartmen^
fî nancial reporteThall^be^ based^'on the accmTmetho7^ Statement, and all other
Contractor's total revenues and expenditure^wheth^ accounting and include the
from funds provided pursuant to this Aareement Th " generated by or resulting
calendar days after the end of Lch month thirty (30)

6. Performance Measures

f^ndi!^^'oT -"^asures are required for client services rendered from SOR
6.1. The Contractor shall ensure thet inno/ ,«f * .

under this contract that enter care directiy'^throuoMhe V°T Payments

proper consents in place for transfer of informattonTor"tL""
between the Doorways and the Contractor Purposes of data collection

6.3. The Contractor shall ensure that ftn©/ ,• .
Ooon^ays receive (CPRA)

sources of funds'^°""^"'^® measures are required for client services rendered from all

evaluate ttTafse^ices are measured as in Section 6.4 below tonot limited to the opioid epidemic and assoSoverS''""'"

sps r^' 'ndata on a monthly basis for the following measures- Contractor agrees to report
Initiation: % of clients accessing services within 14 days of screening-
Engagement: % of clients receiving 3 or more eligible services within '34 days-

cT:r' ^ —Within 60 d^rainicauy appropriate services: % of clients receiving ASAM level of care wiihin
Treatment completion: % of clients completing treatment; and

Of ail Clients

—use.

Sobnely Centers for New Hampshire, Inc. /C P
SS-2020-BDAS-04-OPtOfD Contractor Initials
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6.5.1.

6.5.2.

6.5.3.

6.5.4.

6.5.5.

6.5.6.
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6.5.6.3
individuals arrested ir, past 30days from date of first service to date of last service

6.5.6.4
individuals that have stablehousing at last service compared to first service

7.2.

6.5.6.5. Increase in/no change in number of individuals participating in
community support services at iast service compared to first service

7. Contract Compliance Audits
7.1. In the event that the Contractor undergoes an audit bv the Dpnartmpnt fho

The Contractor shall ensure the corrective action plan includes, but is not limited to:
7.2.1. The action(s) that shall be taken to correct each deficiency;

The action(s) that shall be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of each deficiency;
The spectfic steps and time line for implementing the actions above;
The plan for monitoring to ensure that the actions above are effective; and

on progress on

7.2.2.

7.2.3.

7.2.4.

7.2.5.

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire, Inc.

SS-2020-BDAS-04-OPIOID

Exhibit A
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Exhibit B

Method and Conditinng Precedent tn

' ■ 5 S SSpS™ tr'ta t:r'«'°r
ExhlbilA, Scop. Jf «>• CooMclorpp™,„,„Exhibit A, Scop© of Services

of Heaim^and'Hura'lr Se^^^ ^uSan^Tburlnd^l'*®? TT^ Department
Administration State Opioid Response Grant^:,li , t . Services
(CFDA) #93.788, Federal Award Identification NurSef(P^^^

■  funded from another source. ^ Program already

'■ --pS;ti°h^h1tde;«^^ A. Scope Of Services in
identified in Ex^hibit A,'?coJe"orSe^iSand?his'^^^^^

■  ..srroriprorsrisspr^^^with Doorways in accordance with 42 CFR PartT SOR funds,7. .The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following-
7.1. Medicaid ID of the Client;
7.2. WITS ID of the Client (if applicable)

•7.3. Period for which room and board payments cover-
7.4,L..., .,0.,. ,o,«p ..„;c.3,„,p, ^

- 7.5. Amount being billed to the Department for the service
'■ 2rch'rt£ ?nd

Sr^d m^ar©;." --t be rmST/^eS:
d'a^%'fr":°ngS

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire. Inc.
SS-2020-B0AS-04-OPIOI

Exhibit B

Page 1 of2
Vendor initials

Date7^/f
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\p

10. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

11. The Contractor shall ensure any adjustments to a prior invoices are submitted with the
original invoice, adjusted invoice and supporting documentation to justify the
adjustment.

12. The Contractor shall submit final invoices to the Department no later than forty-five
(45) days after the contract completion date.

13. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

14. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

15. The Contractor agrees to the Charitable Choice federal statutory provisions as follows:

Federal Charitable Choice statutory provisions ensure that religious
organizations are able to equally compete for Federal substance abuse
funding administered by SAMHSA, without impairing the religious character
of such organizations and without diminishing the religious freedom of
SAMHSA beneficiaries (see 42 USC 300x-65 and 42 CFR Part 54 and Part
54a, 45 CFR Part 96, Charitable Choice Provisions and Regulations).
Charitable Choice statutory provisions of the Public Health Service Act
enacted by Congress in 2000 are applicable to the SAPT Block Grant
program. No funds provided directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government to organizations participating in applicable programs may
be expended for inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious
instruction, or proselytization. If an organization conducts such activities, it
must offer them separately, in time or location, from the programs or services
for which it receives funds directly from SAMHSA or the relevant State or
local government under any applicable program, and participation must be
voluntary for the program beneficiaries.

Sobriety Centers for New Hampshire, (nc. Exhibit B Vendor Initials
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6.

7.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPEClAi

under the ContracfSl be^us'^Tonly as pTi^enUo^m^^^^ for'r''® Contractor
agrees"ls'foIlows" ^'o^esaid covenants, the ContraXherebTctvenante a^d

of individuals such diSy^dele^halionha^^ mTd^in"' determine the eligibilitystate laws, regulations, ord'ers, guidetes" pofcie^^XoceXe?"" ®"''

'■ . J^eTerrtmemTr rha?~'arsha"t'r^^^^^ -^® P-ided bythe Department. ''® '^®'^® «' times as are prescribed by

' s°Tm"arrdrgier^^^^^^^^ "V'•'e °epadnrent, the Contractorinformation necessary to support rnXih wl dem^tll "''J®''- ™® ®''®" 'p<='"''p a"
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumi<ih thn n rt" fnformation as theregarding eligibility determinations that the Department m^^'^quesrormljur' ''°PP'P®"'P'i°"
individuals declared Mgib?e°have''rrighno a faifhS?"'^ for services hereunder, as well asContractor hereby covenants and agre« ^t iraonlS/f®®''''"® '"a'a^'nation. Thean application form and that each applicant or rlSiSnt shalfh™''f® ® !l'''® P®™'«a<^ 'o «" out
hearing in accordance with Department regulations informed of his/her right to a fair

make a payment. gratuit%^ Contract to accept or
^e State in order to influence the performance of the Sconp nf w Sub-Contractor orContract. The State may terminate this Sract lid ? . ®'®"®'' ^determined that payments, gratuiUes or offers of emDtovl,pnl"lf ®®J- "p ®P''-39™eP'ent if it isany officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contr^tor ofsu^Contraltor.""®'®''

other documentl'ramractolllldliSS™ "us exprefs?^^ "'® '^PPfo®'or inanyhereto, that no payments will be mldltTeundeXre '^® P®'^'®®
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual orior to thp Prt n' '"®"''®'^ 'o'and no payments shall be made for expenses iraurred bv thTrln r f"f''"o o' 'fie Contract
prior to the date on which the Individual aoolies for sPrviZl« services providedfederal regulations) poor to a determinatio'n'that theTnSaTil^Sklo^se'res'''
herein contained s^rbrdeemidto^lbligatro^^^^^ "^® Contract, nothing
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the ronirar-in Department to purchase serviceswhich exceeds the amounts reasonable and neSa™ to ° th® '^°"!'®o'o^® costs, at a rate
rate which exceeds the rate charoed bv the rnn»r ♦ . quality of such service, or at afunders for such service, if at any time durino thiTerm ?'".®''3""® '"dlviduais or other third partyExpenditure Report hereunderthe oLartmem sha, h " ®"®'' ™®®'P' 'P® Rnalpayments hereunder to reimblree itS expend ''°"'®®®'®^ ^®® ®®®<'In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charoed brfh» rn'^? .' ''ecelved paymentor other third party funders, the Department may elect to: Contractor to ineligible Individuals

StTom rnVtotoreX'llul ^®'®® ®''®" ''® ®®'®"-P®Plexcess of costef ^ Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
ExWbll C - Special Provisions Conlroctor InlUals

7.1
7.2.
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7.3.

8.

8.1

su^crrrpaZSir;rsr.:rs^
provided to any individual who is found L the Contractor for servicesany time dunng^ the period Si^hid

records: maintenance, RETENTiON, AUDiT, DISCLOSURE. AND CONFIDENTIALITY-

® '; rnrolhlre°;p:nse°s1n;Z;^^^^ .t~o.or1n° hf "f <=-'=
Income received or collected by the Sac o So thS?'®. o 'II®
maintained in accordance with accountinc nrorprlnroc h ? ' ^^'^ords to be
properly reflect all such costs and exoenses anri ilhi^h sufficiently and
to include, without limitation all ledgers books rernrri^ are acceptable to the Department, and
purchase requisitions and o;dtrvouSer^ ?eauS
tn-kind contributions, labor time cards oavrollq Jnrt nlL '"ventories, valuations of
Department. '•®®°rds requested or required by the

®  sSc^riuSs: c^srsrs r:'/" h
eligibility (including ail forms required to determine etg1wl!IvSac^®''°'h® .^PP'^^P""" ̂nd

Stcy flSSr rromrnre^thLuhtrepod be ̂ 0^0Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 - "Audit^ nf?t ? f the provision of
Profit Organizations" and the provisio^^^^ Governments, and Non
Programs, Activities and Functions issued bv Sie LJq C^Ia Organizations,
they pertain to financial compliance audits. General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as

exception. ^ ®®" been disallowed because of such an

in connection with the p^rfomiance^^^^ r^ords maintained hereunder or collected
be disclosed by the Contractor prov^^J^d how^^^^^^^^ that our^rnM ®balInot
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of surh ihfn^ t° regulations of
public officials requiring such information in connRrtinn »«/ith 2-"' b© made to
directly connected to the administration of the servirR^ th ° ^®'" P^n^oses
the use or disclosure by any party of ̂ nv^^ ^^^ber. that
directly connected with the administration of the DeDartmpTn^^h^ recipient for any purpose not
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited exceot on ^®®P®"®'b'''t'®s with
attorney or guardian. onioiieo except on written consent of the recipient.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor IniUals ̂

9.
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ir.!iT. '"'"T"'®' ""^""^1 ̂«P0rts containing a detailed descriDtionof
rnntafn non-a"owal)le expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
iusti^v the rail, f shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department tojustify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submmf.H nn tho fnrm

11 2 Department or deemed satisfactory by the DepartmentFina Report. A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the termof this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Departmenfan^^^
and oLirr"""®?' Progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposaland other information required by the Department. merroposai

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of th«

• =~=i====:x:=,==:~

Priol writtlTp°pmva'lS'^^^^^^^ 'he comredwithout

S=j==H-~H===S^'
S~S~SS~HSS;
• SSSS-SSSSS.
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vL

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than"50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.

Certification Forms are available at! httpi/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections* The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 fPub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c) in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience
but the Contactor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Spedal Provisions Contractor Initials
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r«cnln « ^ ̂  schedulB tdsntifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
iq nwHQ h subcontractor's performance will be reviewedly.o. UHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

improvement are identified, ttre Contractor strall

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1,

20.2.

20.3.

20.4.

20.5.

20.6.

to determined by the Departmentto be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

document submitted by the Contractor on aform or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or

CortrU't and^^fid f "1"]^ aPPoi-fance with the terms and conditions of the

the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder shall

r^hlbife'cnhe clTacT ''''''
FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations rules orders and
an such referred to in the Contract, the said reference shali be deemed to "meanall such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

comra^m n."? ^UNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under thisContract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

09/13/18
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAnP

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows;

4- CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGRFFMFMT

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ali obiigations of the State
hereunder induding without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds'
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected bv
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropnation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Seiylces provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, In whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds the
State shall have the nght to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10, Termination, Is amended by adding the following language:
may terminate the Agreement at any time tor any reason, at the sole discretion of

opton to ierSrin^lf^tSee^
'e™ination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eariy

terminatior^, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. idenUfying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

State and shall promptly provide detailed

nlfrr ♦ J Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any Information ordata requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
ds requested.

Agreement, induding but not iimited to dients receiving
se^ices under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity mduding contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

m  ® notifying dients and other affected individuals
k" -h ,f. .U e®'®' '"®'"''® Praposed Communications in itsTransition Plan submitted to the State as descril>ed above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department re^es the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the '
parties and approval of the Govemor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

M Q r 7ni t . Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690; Title V. Subtitle D- 41
1 11 «nH 1 fl ® ^ ^®''® Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION.- CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
(Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31

7lfiRi 9ifiQi? published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages21681-21691). and require ceiUfication by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-
to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the

maw fi * f ^ grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
^ach orant d^ Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates foreach grant dunng the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a

rfT . ® reliance is placed when the agency awards the qrant False
nT Shall be grounds for suspension of payments suspens

le^ it to^ govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

^  continue to provide a drug-free workplace by1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's '
rrohibiti^-^ specifying the actions that will be taken against empioyees for violation of such

1.2. ptablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

-  • / -• -a v*wir\|jiawe,

1.3.

1.4.

19 2 ThI 1^9 counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring In the workplace;

employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
NoU^ng the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in "writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every qrant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace RequirementscucHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date5/aa//^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)S5Ma.n . Uillsk^ i/H,
Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Date 1 ^

vendor Name:

' I M Kobb iVi S

ItExhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
Workplace Reguirements _ »cu/DHHS/110713 Pgge 2 of 2 Date"?



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

C.ERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYlMrs

Sect.^r319 S^pJbHc LawTot" I f provisions of
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to havTmrcrnf^r^.^l R®=Wctions on Lobbying, and
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute thefoiiowing CertSon.'^"^®' Sections 1.11

g |St's E"o'sr.us DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered)-

•Chlw lunno^P?"''® under Title IV-A
c  ° Enforcement Program under Title IV-D

-M^rif™ H p"®' under Title XXMedicaid Program under Title XIX
•Com^rnunity Services Block Grant under Title VI
Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

any person foHnfluencinJ on behalf of the undersigned, to
Of Congress, an officer oremployTof Congress o^ an ami' « "ontber
connection with the awarding of any Federal rani'rart T® ® Congress in
modification of any Federal »ntrai grant o^ or^Zr^^^^^ '■®"®"®'' amendment, or
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). ' "'operative agreement (and by specific mention

an ofHcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a ® Congress.Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative aar^^^ent c connection with this
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit StanriarH c®^ ®"^-9rantee or sub-eport Lobbi^ng. in accordance with Its Instructions, attached and iSemified'ai

document for subJwar!?s^at'^^IMjere^^^^^^^ certification be included in the awardloans, and cooperative agreements) and that^ai, sub-reS^l^nts^shK^trs"^^^^^^^^^^^^
fasSrerr^dTnTs^^^^^^^^^^^^^
transaction imposed by Section 1352 Title 31 U S Pnrio a ^ or entering into thiscertmcation shall be subject to a civifpenaV oV notless^^^^^^
each such failure. ^ and not more than $100,000 for

Vendor

iMg
Namei^Q^brtCtw Qj^'ferS 0^

Name:
Title ^6]s.b\Yv3 '

CUfDHHS/110713

Exhtbll E - Cartiflcattan Regarding Lobbying
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate vmtten notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "^vered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person." 'primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibillty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

B. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

I Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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Now Hampshire Departmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

person in thfortina^^ normally possessed by a prudent

covered ham if a participant in a

for cause or default. ^ vemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

^  to the .,0. ̂

pnlt^riudedlZtv^^^^^^ In/FedeTatd •
aX® judgrnVreS®agaTs??hKS "'""T,' Pe«"°on?Sconnacuon w,th obtaining, armptlngTo
transactton or a contract under a public transaction ^ (Federal, State or local)
statutes or commission of embezzlement State antitrust ^

11.3. ~ pm:X"foT P^°P«'? " "

certiHcation^rXSe'^^rcip^^,"^

13 2 Peclared1neligiWe","o?^'®' '13.2. where the prospective iower tier participant is Sftn '®' PaPalment or agency
prospecbve participant shai, attach an e^ianatont t"p;^^osa?rn.ra:tr'°"'

"■ p-p-' (00.^., th. „ w.
Voiuntary Exciusion - Lower Tier Covered J Suspension, ineligibility andtransactions and in all solicitations for lower ber coS trMrs'""''"""

iMm
Vendor Name:^;^Y > CWt Co^'VorS

. Ke^x;

Name: •,
Title:

£Y(
ibbvVi 5

CU/DHHS/110713
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTiFICATION OF COMPLiANCE WITH REQUiREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRiMINATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAiTH-BASED ORGANiZATiONS AND

WHiSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension'or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G

Vendor Initials
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followina
certification: ®

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

/  / Nm

Exhibit G

Vendor InitialsCwtrficaiion of Complionce with rwMrvments partafning to FadorsI NondlachrrtneUon, Equal Traatmani of Failh-Baaad OroartzaBoni
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor ^

Dale MgmA- r" - 1 I ,

)v/

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Vendor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY
ACT BUSINESS ASSQCIATF

AGREEMENT
The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business"
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164 402 of Title 45
Code of Federal Regulations.

Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160! 103 of Title 45 Code
of Federal Regulations.

Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45
Code of Federal Regulations.

"designated record set"

^°ctionT64 5o'i°"' aggregation" in 45 CFR

operations"

n  o Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
2009 D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
1(M-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i- Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160 103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
L/FK Section 164.501(g).

j. "Pnvacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
^formation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received b\
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 CwkiKH I
.. ... Exhibit I Vendor InitialsHealth Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 1 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

1. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o- "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

P- Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit! Vendor initials ̂
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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remedied Covered Entity has exhaustedremedies. ouvorea tmity nas exhausted

e.

(3)

b.

c.

3/2014

 all

ObliQations and Artl^i.-es of Biisinp.s Assoriatp

protected tiealtti information of the Covered En^. ®

Breach t«rcatonRulr'^ S^-^ty, and

a^"d recordtS tot™ e "ooks

shall btonsideTd a V".' I''agreements with Contractor's intended business^associaterrhtii!be"t|^nr^f''
Health Insurance Portability Act Vendor Initials
Business Associate Agreement
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Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shali be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shail make avaiiable during normal business hours at its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shail within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shali have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

i. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shali return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shali not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Busine»

3/2014 Exhibill Vendor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 4 of 6



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. ^

(4) Obligations of Covered Fntlty

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or llmltatlonfs) In its

m 520 individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
use or Si'sdosurrorPHL Associate's

"■ ^"^11 Associate of any changes in or revocation
di5c?n^rh°"n"°*' A° Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or

50for ̂ 5 rplLtn Section
'■ ^Xure of PHHha?rf ^"y resinot\ons on the use or

to thP PvtPnt that has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164 522iome extent that such restnction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of '

(5) Termination for CatiRn

sslP===s=~
vSnTo^ht s7crS™"^"°"

(6) Miscellaneous

a.

c.

d.

3/2014

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
En^N ?o Agreement, from Ume to time as is necessa^ t Covered
qerMrit^ rT'' Changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy andSecunty Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

^^^^SS^e^P^HI^nrnlirifd acknowledges that it has no ownership rightswiin respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.
The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolvedto permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rul^ ̂

Health insul™ pLhtna, .a. l-lllelKl^Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature oT Authorized Representative

^^
N le-ot^utame-of-Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

D^e

fers nf Moa/ ihrop^lre^

Signature ̂ f ̂tlidrlzed Repi!6semawe

PmiiA/ Rakhi'inS
Name of Authorized Representative

T>ir^p4nr
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL RINDING ACCOIIMTABILITY ANn traNSPARFMPv
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

InmallSlrt te "h" sutHjrantsol$25.000oamo™ illhe

Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Locatton of the entity
Principle place of performance

9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If-

rnrar^re^-rSTn-u-a- aTd"'"10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

thra:^;"<:r"w^'^?m~t'!;''^^^^^^^^ P'- 30 days, in which

Vendor Name:

Date' '
Name:

Title:

5tjbrrd5y (jC4^3 O-f
yciAi W(mp^\C^

£Y€CM.-f c^or

CU/DHHS/U0713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federai Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compiiance

Page 1 of 2
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forma

-pon- tPe

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2

loans, grants, sub^iranls, and/or cooperative agreat^^^S and t2i spfnn^n^n '

ssKssr^ «s=s,s'jssssr"'""
NO yes

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the toiowing-

1986? ^^^^•^•^•^®'^^®^'^®°^^))®^«®«^'^6104ofthelntemalRevenueCodeof

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

'■ c'jisrararsr" VP- P-'nesa or
Name:

Name:,

Name:

Name:.

Name:

Amount

Amount,

Amount.

Amount.

Amount

CUOHK8ni0719

gxfabtt J - Certificstion Rssarding the Fedenti Furwlino
Aocountabimy And Traneparency Act (FFATA) CompBance

Page 2 of2
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

™"««nz.d dsacur..
Situations where persons othpr than similar term referring to
authorized purposf ha^ accIL or ^
information, whether physical or elecfronic Personally identifiable
information," Breach"shall ̂ ve thesa^ meanl^o asm'f '".Protected Health
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Reg Jafions ̂

' :ss'r„
srir-' ^ =""«• ■™rc'u."SS2:

'■ «'s orsi?;."j=r?thr;rT r '"™«"assistance benefits aS personafinfor^"±,^? iL"^ Pe^HoAbuse Treatment RecordrcaJr^coms Prn "^^ Substance
Personally Identifiable Information. ' ^eel"i Information and

'tt*"Human Services (DHHS) or accessed ° / "^® °®P®rtnient of Health andservices - of which collection disclosure orotl^ion 5 P®rformlng contracted
state or federal law or regulation This'lnfomn f disposition is governed by

in~on7pS FerrafT'Li'n'l'^^^^^^^^^ Ipi)'pemo"na, ̂ 01^°Payment Card In'dustry (PcKnitr
businessTssocfatl 's"u'bco'ra"cto? -=°"'-®'°r's employee,OHHS data or derlvatlve'd^^^'--

regulations promulgated theremd^^^^ Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
'• «cluTerarmpts ieL^Ltdt ®®-^'y P°"cy.

system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial" r ®"®®''i°nzed access to aa system for the process^ or Se of ®"®"'h°ri2ed use of
c^sTnT'lnddet^^tncludt^etts^ '^^® ^sTo'wiedgfor misplacement of hardcopy documents, and'mlsrfutrn^'^rp^ylSl^'T^ciVonic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 ( / ()Exhibit K ^ M t
DHHS Information Contractor Initials WK^
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R 6
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. Last update 1(VO9/10 Exhibit K Contractorlnitlals
DHHS information
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3.

in response to a
consent or object to the disclosure. DHHS has an opportunity to

by additional
pursuant to the Privacy and Securitv Rule thi "I safeguards of PHi
additional restrictions and must no^ discioie PHTin^'!fnlaT"®' "r®
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeTua^ds"

Contract. inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End llcor i<.
Confidential Data between applications the data containingbeen evaluated by arexpert WIed^^^^application's encryption capabilities ensure secure LnsmTss'nvl^'th'eilmet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices End i iQor r,,
or^^rtabie storage devices, such as a thumb dnve.'as

ema^s encrvoteri Iransmit Confidential Data if
persons authorized to receive such information ®'^bresses of

'■ Dala'l'Csecure^sockL^i^^^^^^^ Confidentialsecure. SSL encrypts dataTmnsr^ftttdlr/web sT
'■ bS'"Ss'®sucf as"°Dmo^ ® ^®®^ "°f ®se file

Confidenbal Date ® °°°9'® ^loud Storage, to transm^

«hto'theTonbn^
cSnti"Dat?said'Lvlcl m";be en^KldCswo'd'^^^^^^^^^^^^8. open Wireless NetworKs. End User may not transmit Conndential Date via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18
Exhibit K

DHHS Irifonnatlon
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain alt electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6.. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
'  contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information

where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor I nftiafs
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (6 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Inittals
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Conftdential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.goy

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlonSecurltyOfflce@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOBRIETY CENTERS OF

NEW HAMPSHIRE INC is a New Hampshire Profit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08,

2015. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concemcd.

Business ID; 725848

Certificate Number: 0004554306

ai

y
u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of July A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Corporation without Seal)

SiA^an ' . do hereby certify that;
(Name of Clerk of the Corporalipn; cannot be contract signatory)

of Myfenifs/ifTg,
two resolutions dulv

l?|73/q :
I  ] (Cate)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk o1 x.
(Corporatidh Name)

2. The following are tme copies of ̂ o resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation duly held on i /o

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter Into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Heaith and Human Services, , for the provision of

*>^00 -t hrvxrrV services.

RESOLVED: That the F^ily
(Title of ContracFSignatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and aii documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions. .
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirabie or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been fended or revoked, and remain In fuii force and effect as of
the day of C^a ly 2q30.

(Date Contract Signed) ^

4. 's the duiy elected

(Name of Contract Signatory) Tntleofuontract Signatory)

of the Corporation.

(Signature of Clerk of the Corporation)
STATE OF NEW HAf^PSHIRE /

County of ////

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of . 20 / 9 .

By Su .(Name of Clerk of the Corporation) dajUA. J PcM^^
(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL) CARLA A PIER80N
1  t I- . Notary Public.  r . Commission Expires. State of New Hampshire

My Commission Expires
. ̂ 1 ;v-. August 8,2023

r«

a. t : •• -

..V



ACORif EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE
OATCftMOorrmf)

8/16/2018

THIS EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY USUR/MCC IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE
bYTEREST named below. TK2S EVIDENCE DOES NOT AFFIRfiSATlVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE

COVERASE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES BELOW. THIS EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE
ISSUING INSURER®. AUTHOROED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE ADPmONAL INTEREST.

Cross Insurance

475C StrTOt

Somersworth

(603)742-2552

NU 03878
E-MAK. mdarcy^crossagency■com

COOC: : SUDCOOC:

^^,00329093

eOHMMV

OhJLo Securitry Ins Co
175 Running Hill Road
Suite lA
South Portland ME 04106

KSURCD

Sobriety Centers Of Nh
PO Box 344
PO Box 344
Antrim NH 03440

LOAHMMSeB

EFFCCTtVEMTE

7/21/2018

POUCYNUmxt

BFS568I2889

SCPBUmON DATE

7/21/2019 n
COHTTNUED 10m.
TLRMNATO) F CHECKED

THS REPLACES PR»R EVDEMCE DATED;

PROPERTY MFORMATTON
LDCAnumutsL'WTmi

Loc# 00001/Bldg« 00001
55 Main St
Antrim. NH 03440-3906

THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED.
NOTWnHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOmON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS
SUBJECT TO Aa THE TERMS. EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUaES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

COVBWCE f mu f FOtaiS AMOUMT OF DOUtMHCS OeWCTBLfi

Building, Replacement Cost, Special form
Personal Property, Replacement Cost, Special form

1.923,544
108.000

1.00c
1,00c

REMARKS flndutgiw Special Conditions)

CAWCFtLAT^
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPtRATTON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE
DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Evidence Only
—

MORTGAGEE

LOSS PAYEE

AOOmONAL INSURED

U3AN#

AUTHORIZED REPRESSTTATIVE

Angela Mixa/AM4
i

TPt'de^
ACORO27(2009n2)
015027 ooftnfMO Ttw A/yiOD rnwwtvi lortft ar» of AfVTPn



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMfOO/YYYY)

07/22/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policyiles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsements).

PRODUCER

CGI Business Insurance

171 Londonderry Turnpike

Hooksett NH 03106

N?ME:" Teri Davis
(366)841-4600 (603)622-4618

AnrM»F<«- TDavisigCGIBusinesslnsurance.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICd

INSURERA Ace American Insurance Company

INSURED

Sobriety Centers of New Hampshire, Inc.

55 Main Street

Antrim NH 03440

INSURER B
Eastern /Llliance Insurance Group

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 19-20 Master REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POUCVEFF
(MM/DOftYVYlTYPE OF INSURANCE

TSDCU
INSD

SOHff

Jim POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EXP

(MM/DOrrVYY) UM1TSINSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

EPLt

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAUAfi£TOReNTeO
PREMISES (Ea oceufraocel

MEO EXP (Any oo» pef»on)

OGLG25499S2g 01/30/2019 01/30/2020
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POUCY I I JECT I IPOUCY LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

Employee Benefits

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
(Ea 9CCi(l«ntl

BODILY INJURY (Pw parton)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

CALH08615469003 01/30/2019 01/30/2020 BODILY INJURY (Par accidanO

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par aeeklarm

Underinsured motorist

1,000.000

250,000

10.000

1.000,000

3.000,000

3,000.000

S 1,000.000

S 1,000.000

S 1,000,000

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETORiT>ARTN£R/EXECUTlVE
OFFICERAriEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yas. Ms^ba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS batow

STATUTE
OTH
ER

01-0000113169-01 01/23/2019 01/23/2020 E.L EACH ACCIDENT
500,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POUCY UMIT
500.000

Professional Liability
OGLG25499566003 01/30/2019 01/30/2020

Each Occurence

Aggregate

1,000.000

3,000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddHlonal Ramarka Schadula, may ba attacbad If more apaca la ra<pjirad|

Workers Comp 3A State: NH
Excluded Officer Robert Draper ^

We will endeaver to provide 30 day notice of cancellation or modification of policy. However. 10 days for Non-Payment per State of NH Statue

NHDHHS

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Sobriety Centers
of New Hampshire

ANTRIM HOUSE

55 Main, Street, PO Box 344

Antrim, KH 03440

Telephone: 603-808-0185
Email: info<g>sobrietvcentersofnh.com

Sobriety Centers of New Hampshire - Mission Statement

The Mission of the Sobriety Centers of New Hampshire program is to
provide a safe and structured environment for women to embark on a

new personal path to discover self through service and education and to
help create lives free from the grip of alcohol and drug dependency.

r



albert CUOCO JR.
CKITIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
200 SUTTON STREET. SUITE 236
NORTH ANDOVER, MA 01845

(978)794-4955
FAX (978) 7944942

EMAIL

July 22.2019

To the Board of Directors

Sobflerty Centers of NH

55 Main Street

Antrim, Ma 03340

1 have compited the accompanying Balance Sheet of Sobrlerty Centers of NH, Inc
as of December 31, 2018 and the related Statements of income and Retained Earnings and
Cash Flows for the twelve months then ended, in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

A compilation Is limited to presenting In the form of Financial Statements Information
that Is the representation of management I have not audited or reviewed the accompanying
Financial Statements and. accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of
assurance on them.

Albert Cuoco. Jr.



SOBRIETY CEt^RS OF NH

BAUNCE SHEET

AS OF DECEMBER 31.2018

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash In BanK

Accounts Receivable

Total Curr^t. Assets

Property, Plant and Equipnient

Land

Building & Improvements

Furniture and Rxtures

Vehicles

Less Accumuleted Depreciation

• Total Property, Plant and Equipment

DEC 31

2018

$34,662

82,674

$117,556

$48,994

325.789

26,854

88,797

(28.469)

$481,975

Total Assets $679,531

LIABILmES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Current Portion of Long Term Debt

Total Current Uabilties

Noncurrent Uabilites:

Loans from Officer

Notes Payable

Less; Current Portion of Long Term Debt

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Paid In Capital

Retained Earnings

Total Stockholder's Equity

$22,297

15,225

$37,522

$1,169,813

317,806

(15,225)

$1,492,394

$69,864.00

(1,020,249)

($950,385)

Total Liabilities and Slockholders' Equity

See accountant's compnation report and notes to financial statements

$579,531



SOBRIETY CENTERS OF NH

STATEMENT OF INCOME. EXPENSES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018

Revenue:

Service Income

DEC 31

2018

$1,305,395

Operating Expenses:
Advertising

Auto Expenses

Bank/Credit Card Fees

Billing Service

Business Gifts

Computer/License Fees/Education

Depreciation/Amortization

Dues/Fees

Employee Costs (CORE. Drug, Physica)
Insurance

Medical Records (Electronic)

Office & Lease

Payroll/Payroll Taxes

Patient Expenses

Professionai Fees

Repairs and Maintneance

Subcontractor

Supplies

Taxes - Real Estate

Travel/ Meals Expense

Utildes and Telephone

Net Operating Income

Other Income and Expense:

Interest Expense

Net Income Before Tax

7,617

9,388

3,189

22.825

6.013

3,665

14,858

1,057

5,360

139,108

13,090

13,358

819,879

6,494

8.862

37,135

194.348

55,825

14.315

3.863

48,643 1.428.893

(15,981)

(123,498)

(15,981)

(139,479)

Provtelon for State and Federal Income

Net Income (Loss)

Retained Earnings Beginning of Year

Net Income (Loss)

Retained Earnings End of Year

4,161

(143.640)

(876,609)

(143,640)

(1,020,249)

See accountants compilation report and notes to financial statements



gnppiFTYCFNTERSQFNH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2018

Net Cash Row from Operaang Activities

Net Income

Adjusfrnenla for difterances between Income

flows and cash flows from operating activities:

Increase In Accourrts Receiveble

Icrease in Accounts Payable

DepredatiOfVAmortization Expense

Decrease ibn Escrcw

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

($143,640)

(63,379)

4,978

14,868

998

($186,195)

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Equipment

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Prindpal Payments on Loans

increase In Loan from Robert

Net cash used In finandng activities

Net increase (decrease) in Cash

Cash, January 1,2018

(49.102)

(16,788)

280,892

(49,102)

264,104

$28,817

$6,065

Cash. December 31. 2018 $34,882

Suppiemerrtai Information

Interest Paid

Income Taxes Paid

Sec accountant's compilation report and notes to financial statements'

$15,981

$4,131



■?nRRETV CENTERS OF NK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Revenue RecooniUon'- Service Revenue is recorded on the eccual method at the time that sendees are
substantially completed.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation - Property. Plant and Equipment are recorded at cost.
Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewal items are generany charged to expense. Major repairs are
capitalized. Depredation is computed on the straight line method over estimated useful lives.

Income Taxes - There is no provision for Federal income taxes since reportabte income and expenses are reported
reported on the owner's individual tax returns.. There is s provision for State of New HampsNre

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements In conformity wrfth generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
finandal statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(3) Related Party Transactions - Loan from Rober Draper

There in an unsecured toan from Robert Draper who is the officer and sole sharefoolder.
The note bears no interest rate and no scheduled date of repayrr>ent.

(4) Mortgage and Loan Payable

Franklin Savings Bank
Bulding Mortgage
Interest: 4.50%

Collateral: Property located at
56 Main Street, Antrim, NH

Franklin Savings Bank 66,02®
Line of Credit

Interest; 7.0%

Collateral: Corporate
Assets

Balance $317,806

Balance Due Current Portion
$251,778 $15,225

$15,225



Sobriety Centers
of New Hampshire

ANTRIM HOUSE

55 Main, Street, PO Box 344

Antrim, NH 03440

Telephone; 603-808-0185

Email: info@sobrietvcentersofnh.com

Sobriety Centers of New Hampshire Board of Directors

Chairman of the Board: Robert Draper

Vice Chair: Emily Robbins

Secretary: Susan Smith

Treasurer: Julie Draper



No one receiving salary from this contract.

CX)NTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
N/A


